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Preserve Historic Buildings and Collections, Partnership Project

Project Summary, August 2009

Background
This was a complex project to preserve the historic buildings and the artifact and archival collections at the Laboratory Complex and Glenmont Estate.  The original historic furnishings and documents were beginning to deteriorate because of lack of adequate heating and cooling systems. They were at risk of loss or damage from fire because of old, outdated alarm and sprinkler systems. The vast majority of the artifact collection was inaccessible to visitors and researchers while stored on the upper floors of the historic main laboratory.
LABORATORY COMPLEX

2004 - 2009

Visitors will enter through the historic brick archway on Main Street to start their visit to the Laboratory Complex.

The interior of Building 1, the Physics Laboratory is now the Visitor Center, with restrooms, ticketing and orientation space, a Museum Store, and auditorium.
There are now many ways to experience the Laboratory Complex. In addition to National Park Service Ranger guided programs, new exhibit panels with plasma display screens have been placed throughout Building 5, the main laboratory building. Many of these exhibits showcase the historic photographs and films from the collection. 

An optional self-guided audio tour is also available in English, Spanish, German, and Japanese. Using music and oral histories from the archival collection, as well as interviews with historians, curators and archivists, the recorded tour provides an in-depth look at the laboratory complex. A special children’s audio tour is also available.
Offices were moved out of Building 5, the main laboratory building, in order to open all floors for visitors. Artifacts were moved into collections storage areas or back to their historic locations.

A new phonograph gallery with its own heating and cooling system, was installed on the third floor of Building 5, to display and protect the valuable collection of phonographs.
A new elevator and stair tower was built at the end of Building 5, the main laboratory building. Installation of the elevator provides access to all three floors of the main laboratory building, including the drafting room, precision machine shop, and Thomas Edison’s private lab on the second floor, and the music room, new phonograph gallery and a new artifact exhibit on the third floor. 

The historic walls and floor in Building 2, the Chemistry Laboratory, were cleaned, patched and stabilized.  The interior was painted based on an analysis of the historic paint finishes.  

The Pattern Shop in Building 3, has been furnished to its 1917 appearance. Artifacts that were packed away during construction have been unpacked, cleaned and returned to their original locations.

The interior of Building 4, historically the Metallurgical Laboratory, has been redesigned to serve as an archives reference area. Materials and resources for researchers will be available by appointment.

The replica of the Black Maria along Main Street has been rehabilitated. New siding and electrical upgrades will allow the building to be used for exhibits and programs.

New mechanical systems (HVAC) were installed in the buildings. Plumbing and electrical systems were upgraded.
The fire sprinkler system that protected some of the buildings was expanded to include all historic structures in the complex. 

A new fully addressable fire detection system has been installed in all buildings to provide early warning of any smoke or fire conditions as well as exact locations within the building. 

The halon fire suppression system that protected many buildings since the late 1970s was removed and replaced with an environmentally friendly water sprinkler system. 

A variety of repointing and masonry repairs were completed on many of the buildings along with replacement of deteriorated bluestone coping and window sills.  

Broken window panes were replaced and metal window frames have been repaired.

Most heating and cooling systems were relocated to Building 6, the original power house.

The original terracotta storm drains were replaced with an integrated drainage system to alleviate the surface and subsurface drainage problems that have worsened over the years.
The surface of the courtyard was re-graded and accessible entry ramps have been installed into the buildings. 
Building 11, has been returned from the Henry Ford Museum in Michigan to its original location in the laboratory courtyard. Built about 1910, it was adapted to a variety of uses by Edison and his experimenters who worked on numerous research projects at any one time. The original building was dismantled in 1940 and donated to the Henry Ford Museum. It will be used for a variety of educational and interpretive programs.

The historic view along Main Street in front of the Laboratory Complex was restored to its early 1900s appearance. New sidewalks and granite pavers recreate the historic cobblestone and bluestone walkways along Main Street and down Lakeside Avenue. The cleared landscape in front of the laboratory highlights the carefully designed architectural features of the buildings. 

Across Main Street from the historic laboratory buildings, new curbs and sidewalks, decorative lighting and fencing, and a new landscaped visitor parking lot welcomes visitors.  Marked pedestrian crosswalks at each corner lead visitors to the new Main Street entrance. 
The exterior of Building 35, the park maintenance building across Main Street was re-sided, and heating and cooling systems were upgraded.  A new addressable fire detection system was installed and the fire sprinkler system was upgraded. 
GLENMONT ESTATE
2003 - 2004
Edison Home, Glenmont (built 1880)

A geothermal heating and cooling system was installed in the 29 room mansion. Underground piping connects twelve 300 foot deep wells installed in the lawn to the west of the visitor parking lot, into the heat pumps in the mansion.

Drainage repairs were completed around the exterior of the house.
Installation of a new fire sprinkler system protects the entire 29 room mansion and all of the artifacts housed there.  All piping was carefully concealed within wall and door cavities to retain the historic appearance of the furnished rooms.

A new fully addressable fire detection system was installed throughout the mansion to provide early warning of any smoke or fire conditions as well as exact locations within the building. 

The 1970s halon fire suppression system was removed and replaced with an environmentally friendly water sprinkler system. 
Rooms were refurnished with original artifacts based on historic photographs in the archives.

Greenhouse (built 1909)

The historic Greenhouse was completely rehabilitated. All historic glass was removed, numbered, cleaned then replaced. Cyprus rails were repaired or replaced throughout building.

Steel frames were repaired to secure the cyprus rails. Broken glass and glazing was replaced throughout the Greenhouse. Ridge vents were repaired and made operational. Cracks in the concrete foundation were repaired.
A partnership with the Garden Club of the Oranges has returned the Greenhouse to full operation. 

Potting Shed (attached to greenhouse, 1909)

The exterior concrete and stucco was repaired. Interior and exterior walls were repainted. Drainage repairs were completed around the foundation of the building.

A Garden Shop and visitor information center were opened in the Potting Shed.

Barn (built 1908)

The deteriorated wood siding was restored. The slate roof was repaired. Exterior walls were painted. Roof drains and gutters were repaired. Windows and doors were repaired.
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